# APR 0 9 1991

NATIONAL REGISTER

### National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations of eligibility for individual properties or districts. See instructions in *Guidelines* for Completing National Register Forms (National Register Bulletin 16). Complete each item by marking "x" in the appropriate box or by entering the requested information. If an item does not apply to the property being documented, enter "N/A" for "not applicable." For functions, styles, materials, and areas of significance, enter only the categories and subcategories listed in the instructions. For additional space use continuation sheets (Form 10-900a). Type all entries.

d. Nome of Duenouty			
1. Name of Property	rian Church		
historic name Hamburg Presbyte other names/site number N/A	rian Church		
other names/site number N/A			
2. Location		- ceangresages leniev	no chareld by a macent end historic on
street & number Cherry and Linco	oln Streets		not for publication N/A
city, town Hamburg			vicinity N/A
etate Arkansas code	AR county Ashle	y code A	R 003 zip code 71646
3. Classification			
Ownership of Property	Category of Property	Number of Reso	ources within Property
X private	x building(s)	Contributing	Noncontributing
public-local	district	_1	buildings
public-State	site		sites
public-Federal	structure		structures
	object		objects
		1	0 Total
Name of related multiple property listin	a:	Number of cont	ributing resources previously
N/A	a.		tional Register N/A
		noted in the real	Torial Mogister
4. State/Federal Agency Certifica	tion		
In my epinion, the property mee  Signature of certifying official  Arkansas Historic Preserv  State or Federal agency and bureau  In my opinion, the property meet  Signature of commenting or other official	vation Program		4-3-9/ Date
State or Federal agency and bureau			
5. National Park Service Certifica	tion		
I, hereby, certify that this property is:			
entered in the National Register.  See continuation sheet.  determined eligible for the National Register.  See continuation sheet.  determined not eligible for the National Register.	My Fede	nnan.	5/14/91
removed from the National Register other, (explain:)			Date of Action

6. Function or Use		and the second of
Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions) Religion/Church	Current Functions (enter catego Social/Garden Club	ries from instructions)
Service (Single (Fig. 5) )	24 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	MINOR CORP. TONIO.
NATIONAL	to anomalia te vers	THE RESERVE OF THE PARTY OF THE
REGISTER		
7. Description	THE STATE OF THE S	
Architectural Classification (enter categories from instructions)	Materials (enter categories from	
	foundation Wood	
Late 19th and Early 20th Century American Movements/Craftsman	walls Wood/Weatherboa	ard State of the second col
American Movements/Craftsman		
	roof <u>Asphalt</u>	Virguette to amuse .
	other	All Single Train
Describe present and historic physical appearance.		Ottom a
	neifaethirie2 e	

## National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

		7		1
Section	number		Page	

#### Summary

The Hamburg Presbyterian Church is a single story, wood frame church building that, as it currently appears, is designed in the Craftsman style. Its gable roof is punctuated only by a square, hipped roof tower near the northern gable end and is sheathed with asphalt shingle. Its walls are covered with a combination of wood weatherboard, novelty siding and half-timbering. The entire structure rests upon cypress blocks.

#### Elaboration

The Hamburg Presbyterian Church is a single story, wood frame church building that, as it currently appears, is designed in the Craftsman style. Its plan is basically rectangular, with the large sanctuary and vestibule placed at the western end of the building and the original vestry spaces placed at the eastern end. Its gable roof is punctuated only by a square, hipped roof tower near the northern gable end and is sheathed with asphalt shingle. Its walls are covered with a combination of wood weatherboard, novelty siding and half-timbering. The entire structure rests upon cypress blocks.

The western or front elevation consists of the large, central window and the double-leaf entry placed near the northern wall. The window is composed of a decorative, semi-circular, leaded stained glass transom atop a pair of four-over-four wood sash windows that are each surrounded by smaller stained glass pieces. The projecting cornice above is supported by alternating Craftsman brackets and knee braces. The eastern elevation opposite is fenestrated by two four-over-four wood sash windows placed symmetrically in the elevation and flanking a slightly off-center single-leaf door on the first story. The northern and southern elevations are virtually identical, with each being lighted by five four-over-four wood sash windows (each of which feature the same decorative stained glass surrounding the clear, larger panes) placed symmetrically across the facades.

The building features a significant amount of exterior detail. In addition to the windows described above, the cornice around the entire building is decorated with Craftsman brackets of various configurations. Those on the western and eastern elevations are of both the jigsawn, decorative variety and the more typical knee braces; those that run along the northern and southern cornices are of the former type only. The northern and southern elevations are clad with both half-timbering that divides the wall surface into horizontal rectangular fields below the windows and vertical rectangular fields above, with weatherboard placed in between. The half-timbering lends a unique rhythm that compliments the pattern of the exposed decorative rafter tails above. This half-timbering pattern is continued on the eastern elevation and is further complimented by the addition of the decorative, vertical wood planking in the pediment area, the bottoms of which have been cut to form a triangular pattern that also adds

## National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

7	2	
Section number	Page	

flat, geometric ornament that compliments the building's other Craftsman-style ornament.

Of greatest decorative interest, however, is the belfry atop the northern slope of the gable roof. Its low hipped roof and projecting cornice shelter a small, square belfry that is decorated at its top with jig-sawn circular detail and at its base with a flat, solid baluster rail. The actual belfry sits atop a larger square tower and is joined to it by a truncated hipped roof. The cornice of this roof is finished with a simple box cornice and the base of the tower is weatherboarded down to its intersection with the roof.

The interior of the structure is decorated with a wood dado around the entire sanctuary, stained a dark brown, and the walls above are sheathed with vertical, beveled-edge tongue-and-groove boards of varying widths, painted white. The ceiling consists of flat planks with batten strips placed over the cracks between them; it is also painted white. Other surviving details include the original decorative wood rail that ran across part of the front of the raised wood speaking platform or dias, and the dias itself. Most of the original four-panel doors and surrounding trim survive also.

The Hamburg Presbyterian Church has an interesting construction history that needs to be noted. The building, in its original configuration, was constructed in 1871, and was at least somewhat different in appearance until c. 1920. Though no historic photographs of its pre-1920 appearance survive, the visible alterations to the building, combined with the oral accounts, indicate that the original tower was probably placed at the northwest corner, directly above the entrance. The oral accounts also corroborate the visible alterations to the interior, the most significant of which was the enclosing of the original black balcony at the rear of the sanctuary to create additional Sunday School and utility space. However, around 1920 the balcony and tower alterations were made, and the building's appearance "updated" to change it from a unique, vernacular interpretation of a Stick style building to an equally unique rendering in the Craftsman style. These alterations included the addition of the cornice brackets, the relocation and redesign of the belfry, and the addition of the exterior decorative details to compliment the existing geometric half-timbering. Thus the building is being considered as a design that dates from c. 1920.

8. Statement of Significance	e service de la companya de la compa
Certifying official has considered the significance of this proper nationally	statewide X locally
Applicable National Register Criteria A B XC	□D
Criteria Considerations (Exceptions)	□D □E □F □G
Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions)  Architecture	Period of Significance Significant Dates  c.1871-1940 C.1920
	Cultural Affiliation N/A
Significant Person N/A	Architect/Builder Unknown
State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria consid	derations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.
	16. Geographical Date (crospe of propertyrc_c
Zone Easting dorning	

9. Major Bibliographical References	sage Strike Strike Strike
a los estados para por estados por notal	
	State
	X See continuation sheet
Previous documentation on file (NPS):  preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 6) has been requested  previously listed in the National Register  previously determined eligible by the National Register  designated a National Historic Landmark  recorded by Historic American Buildings  Survey #  recorded by Historic American Engineering  Record #	State historic preservation office Other State agency
10. Geographical Data  Acreage of property Less than 1  UTM References  A 1 5 6 1 2 3 4 0 3 6 7 6 7 4 0  Zone Easting Northing  C	B
	See continuation sheet
Lincoln Street with the eastern edge of Cher point formed by its intersection with a perpet the building; thence proceed easterly along s perpendicular line running along the eastern along said line to a point formed by its inte	nt formed by the intersection of the southern edge of the street, proceed southerly along said line to a cendicular line running along the southern elevation of the line to a point formed by its intersection with a celevation of the building; thence proceed northerly exection with a perpendicular line running along the line westerly. See continuation sheet to the point of
Boundary Justification	
This boundary includes all the property history	rically associated with this resource.
	See continuation sheet
11. Form Prepared By	
name/title Patrick Zollner, National Register	
organization Arkansas Historic Preservation Pr	
street & number 225 East Markham, Suite 300	telephone (501) 324-9346
city or town Little Rock	state <u>Arkansas</u> zip code <u>72201</u>

## National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

		8		1
Section	number		Page	

Summary

Criterion C, local significance

The Hamburg Presbyterian Church is significant locally as the best surviving example of a Craftsman style church building; however, it is also significant as an unusually successful adaptation of what was initially a vernacular interpretation of the Stick style of architecture into a Craftsman style building.

#### Elaboration

The community of Hamburg was selected as the county seat when Ashley County was formed by act of Legislature in 1848. The town experienced a significant period of growth in the 1850's, largely through immigration from southern states to the east. Among these settlers were a significant number of Presbyterians. And though they worshipped in existing churches of other denominations due to the absence of an organized Presbyterian church when they first arrived, they continued to practice as Presbyterians and preserved their particular traditions until a Presbyterian church in Ashley County could be organized.

A relatively active Presbyterian congregation existed in neighboring Union County in the 1850's, and so it was to them that the unorganized Ashley County Presbyterians turned to help them establish a formal church. This was accomplished in the late spring or early summer of 1859 with the official recognition of what was called the Orion Church in Mill Creek township. This church struggled along during the instability and unrest brought on by Civil War, as did so many Arkansas congregations, until 1866, when it became clear that Hamburg would provide a more central location for a church facility. After this move the church grew steadily and continued to add many new members. By 1871 the growth was sufficient to require the construction of a new and large church building to shelter the faithful, and the result was the current building. The church included a sanctuary, vestry rooms, a vestibule, and a balcony for black worshippers located at the back of the sanctuary.

The congregation continued to grow gradually, though it prospered throughout the end of the nineteenth century and into the twentieth. The church records note that it was in 1909 that the first mention was made regarding new construction. The plans at that time were for the construction of a completely new facility, with the entire congregation to be renamed in honor of a recently-deceased elder of the church. However, these plans never came to fruition, as the original building was maintained and survives until this day. Nevertheless, it was almost certainly within the next ten years that the original rear of the sanctuary was partitioned to create separate Sunday School rooms below and enclosed rooms above in the structure that was formerly the black balcony. It was during this time period also that the other significant changes to the exterior were made, as Hamburg residents who were living as of the early 1980's recall having attended the church in 1930 as children and remember that the building

## National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

		8		2
Section	number		Page	-

looked then exactly as it does now. This account is consistent with the style chosen for the remodeling, as the Craftsman style of architecture was popular in Arkansas starting about 1920, and this slightly more ornate version of it in particular.

The Hamburg Presbyterian Church continued to operate as such until the early 1980's, when a loss of population generally in Hamburg combined with other societal factors to cause the congregation's numbers to dwindle to the point that it was no longer feasible to maintain the building as a church. However, it was sold to the Hamburg Garden Club soon thereafter, and they have continued to maintain the building in largely its c. 1920 appearance, the only significant changes being the modernization of certain kitchen equipment and the removal of the rows of curved wooden pews within the sanctuary (it should be noted, however, that the Garden Club has preserved several of the pews for posterity; they are kept within the church).

The Hamburg Presbyterian Church is eligible under Criterion C with local significance as not only the best surviving example of an early Craftsman-style church building in Hamburg but also as an unusually successful adaptation of an earlier architectural style. The geometric half-timbering that defines much of the exterior wall surface of the building was being introduced into the United States during the years just after the Civil War, and it is interesting to speculate on how it made its way so quickly to rural southern Arkansas by the early 1870's. Nevertheless, the remodeling of the building that occurred c. 1920 took great pains to incorporate this attractive existing detail into the new design. This effort is especially evident on the eastern elevation, where the strict linear quality of the horizontal and vertical timbering is complimented by the vertical planks in the pediment above that end in three rows of triangular details - two lower rows flanking a raised central row directly beneath the gable peak - reminiscent of a dentil course. The geometric window panes - of both clear patterned glass and stained glass - certainly appear to pre-date the twentieth century, and yet are oddly appropriate to the 1920 remodeling, largely due to their emphasis on square or rectangular panes of glass that are either clear or of a single rich, primary color.

For all these reasons the Hamburg Presbyterian Church survives as an example of a twentieth century adaptation of a nineteenth century design that is remarkable for the cohesiveness of its final form in spite of the diversity of styles and periods blended within.

## National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

#### **Bibliography**

Etheridge, Y.W., History of Ashley County, Arkansas, (Van Buren, Arkansas, 1959), pp. 58-61.

Goodspeed's History of Southern Arkansas, (Chicago, 1890), pp. 874-885.

History of the Hamburg Presbyterian Church, (1980).

NPS Form 10-900-

OMB Approval No. 1024-0018

## **United States Department of the Interior** National Park Service

## **National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet**

	SUPPLEMENTARY	LISTING RECORD	
NRIS Reference N	umber: 91000589	Date Listed: 05/	14/91
Hamburg Presbyte	rian Church	Ashley	AR
Property Name		County	st
N/A			
Multiple Name			
in accordance withe following notwithstanding the nomination d	th the attached no exceptions, the National Park ocumentation.	ional Register of His mination documentation exclusions, or Service certification	on subject amendme
in accordance with the following notwithstanding the nomination of the following the modern the following the foll	th the attached no exceptions, the National Park ocumentation.	mination documentation exclusions, or Service certification 05/14/9	on subject amendmen include
in accordance withe following notwithstanding the nomination d	th the attached no exceptions, the National Park ocumentation.	mination documentation exclusions, or Service certification 05/14/9	on subjec amendme n include
in accordance with the following notwithstanding the nomination of the following the modern the following the foll	th the attached no exceptions, the National Park ocumentation.  Keeper	mination documentation exclusions, or Service certification 05/14/9	on subject amendme n include
in accordance with the following notwithstanding the nomination of the Signature of the Amended Items in The period of si	th the attached no exceptions, the National Park ocumentation.  Keeper  Nomination:	mination documentation exclusions, or Service certification  05/14/9  Date of	amendmen include  Action
in accordance with the following notwithstanding the nomination of the Signature of the Amended Items in The period of si	th the attached no exceptions, the National Park ocumentation.  Keeper  Nomination:	mination documentation exclusions, or Service certification  05/14/9  Date of	amendmen include  Action

DISTRIBUTION:

### UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

CLASSIFICATION

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES EVALUATION/RETURN SHEET REQUESTED ACTION: NOMINATION PROPERTY Hamburg Presbyterian Church NAME: MULTIPLE NAME: STATE & COUNTY: ARKANSAS, Ashley 4/09/91 DATE OF PENDING LIST: 4/24/91 DATE RECEIVED: DATE OF 16TH DAY: 5/10/91 DATE OF 45TH DAY: 5/24/91 DATE OF WEEKLY LIST: REFERENCE NUMBER: ad 91000589 and dead -- consoling to see A bolled NOMINATOR: STATE Specific dates Statement of Significance (in one paragraph) REASONS FOR REVIEW: summary paragraph APPEAL: N DATA PROBLEM: N LANDSCAPE: N LESS THAN 50 YEARS: O N OMOO OTHER: N PDIL: N PERIOD: N PROGRAM UNAPPROVED: VNICE OF REQUEST: N SAMPLE: N SLR DRAFT: Y NATIONAL: resting eldaNilqqe COMMENT WAIVER: N relating significance to th ACCEPT RETURN TDATE: lo gidenolasler ABSTRACT/SUMMARY COMMENTS: RECOM./CRITERIA REVIEWER Questions concerning this nomination way a DISCIPLINE DOCUMENTATION see attached comments Y/N see attached SLR

MOTIVALIA	District to the control of the contr
	The state of the s
	1 11 Vale 10 40
neck and justify	y below
/Architect agraph)	
rce	
scription tion	
ON	et e de la constitución de la co
tographspre	esentation
may be directed Phone	
	Architect agraph)  scription cion  one cographspresentspr



HAMBURG PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH ASALLY
HAMBURG, ARKANSAS
PHOTOGRAPHED BY K. STORY
AUGUST, 1990
NEGATIVE ON FILE AT AHPP
VIEW FROM NORTHWEST



HAMBURG PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH
HAMBURG, ARKANSAS

PHOTOGRAPHED BY K. STORY
AUGUST, 1980

NEGATIVE ON FILE AT AHPP

VIEW FROM WEST



HAMBURG PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH . ASALY &
HAMBURG, ARKANSAS
PHOTOGRAPHED BY K. STORY
AUGUST, 1980
NEGATIVE ON FILE AT AHPP
VIEW FROM NORTHEAST



HAMBURG PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH ASKLYCU
HAMBURG, ARKANSAS
PHOTOGRAPHED BY K. STORY
AUGUST, 1980
NEGATIVE ON FILE AT AHPP
WINDOW DETSIL



HAMBURG PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH ARMLY CO HAMBURG, ARRANSAS PHOTOGRAPHED BY K. STORY AUGUST, 1980 NEGATIVE ON FILE AT AHPP INTERIOR VIEW



HAMBURG, ARKANSAS

PHOTOGRAPHED BY K. STORY

AUGUST, 1990

NEGATIVE ON TILE AT AMPP

INTERIOR VIEW



HISTORIC **PRESERVATION PROGRAM** 

NATIONAL REGISTER

April 2, 1991

Carol D. Shull Chief of Registration United States Department of the Interior National Register of Historic Places National Park Service 1100 "L" Street, NW Washington, DC 20240



Hamburg - Ashley County, Arkansas

Dear Carol:

We are enclosing for your review the nomination of the above referenced property. The Arkansas Historic Preservation Program has complied with all applicable nominating procedures and notification requirements in the nomination process.

Thank you for your consideration in this matter.

Sincerely,

Cathy Buford

State Historic Preservation Officer

CB:kg

**Enclosures** 



